NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, June 29, 2016
1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATIONS:
PHONE CONFERENCE

Number:

888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739

Also in Carson City

Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Laxalt Building 2nd Floor Chambers
401 N. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89701






NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

MEETING LOCATION:
Phone Conference Onl
NEVADA en v
COMMISSION Laxalt Building
ON TOURISM 401 N. Carson Street — 2™ Floor

Carson City, NV 85701
Teleconference Number:

888-363-4735; Access Code: 4878739 WEdnESday, lune 29' 2016 - 1:00 PM

Commissioners:

Lt. Governor Mark Hutchison, Chair* Don Newman™* John Wagnon*
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair* Rossi Ralenkotter® Julia Arger
Jennifer Cunningham™ Herb Santos* Richard Arnold
Dallas Haun* Ryan Sheltra* Baob Stoldal

Bob Morse* Mike Vaswani* *Voting Member

THIS MEETING IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW"” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:
Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, NV
Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

e Action may be taken on those items denoted “For Possible Action”.

» |tems on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.

e Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

e  An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

«  Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

¢  Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

s Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.

AGENDA
I Roll Cali

A. Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Lt. Governor Hutchison
B. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum- Lt. Governor Hutchison

Page 1of 4



V.

Nevada Commission on Tourism
lune 29, 2016 | Agenda

Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to three {3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and
speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

Approval of Minutes

A. Approval of the March 15, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes — For Possible Action
Topics

A. Chair's Report

B. FY16 Budget Update

C. FY17 1" Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Recommended Allocation — For Possible Action

Grant funds are intended exclusively to develop, promote and improve tourism to
and within the State of Nevada. They may be used for no other purpose, and
must be obligated and/or expended for invoices due in the same fiscal year as
awarded. Grant funds will be used by the Division of Tourism on behalf of a
grantee or distributed to political subdivisions of the state, to fair and recreation
boards, and to local or regional organizations, which promote travel and tourism,
and to assist them in: developing plans and programs for marketing and
advertising which are consistent with the state plan; promoting specific events
and attractions in their communities including adventure, arts, cultural, history
and others that have potential to generate tourism; becoming members of and
attending conferences/conventions of other professional tourism organizations;
providing educational workshops and seminars on topics such as marketing,
hospitality, event management skills or facility improvement in local
communities; providing for unique research and model projects which would
inventory, assess, compare, plan or assist development or demonstrate feasibility
of non-profit attractions in rural Nevada; evaluating the effectiveness of the local
programs and events. For the complete grant guidelines, please visit
TravelNevada.biz.

Page 20f4



Nevada Commission on Tourism
June 29, 2016 | Agenda

. 2016 Governor's Global Tourism Summit Overview

The 2016 Nevada Governor’s Global Tourism Summit will be held October 11-12, 2016
at the Grand Sierra Resort. Staff will provide an update, will review the preliminary
agenda and welcome recommendations regarding topics or speakers.

Commercial Airport Summit —June 30" meeting update

Sales and Industry Partners Update
1. International Sales and Marketing Update

a. IPW

b. European Sales Mission Report

c. Governor's Trade Mission to Australia

d. LVCVA China Mission — New Representative Firm
2. 2017 Show Schedule

Marketing / Advertising Update

1. FY17 Sponsorships — For Possible Action
Sponsorships are defined as events or organizations to which the Division of
Tourism provides funding with the goal being brand extension and community
support. Recommended FY17 sponsorships include:

Reno Air Race NBC Sports Program
Great Reno Balloon Race
Continental Cup of Curling

Red Rock Rendezvous

Sierra Ski Marketing Council

Reno Air Service Corporation

o aoanoco

2. Spring Summer Campaign — Preliminary Report
3. FY17 Planning Calendar / August 10 Marketing Committee Meeting

Public Relations Update

1. International Shows

2. Media Mission to San Francisco Report
3. Domestic Outreach / Media Coverage
4. Recent Awards

Nevada Magazine Update

Page30of4



Nevada Commission on Tourism
June 29, 2016 | Agenda

V. Upcoming Meetings

Marketing Commitiee
Wednesday, August 10, 2016
1:00 p.m.

Full Commission
Wednesday, September 21, 2016
1:00 p.m.

Full Commission

Tuesday, October 11, 2016 (in conjunction with the Governor's Global Tourism Summit)
11:30 a.m.

Grand Sierra Resort

V. Commissioner Comments

VII. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers
are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

Vill. Adjournment — For Possible Action

| The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or via emalil to

| ddykes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N. Carson

Street, Carson City, Nevada and online at www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at (775) 687-0621 or ddvkes@travelnevada.com.

Page 4 of 4









Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
March 15, 2016

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 9:00 a.m. on March 15, 2016 at 401
N. Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by video at 555 E. Washington St #5100, Las Vegas, NV
89101.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor and Chair Hutchison called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m.

Commissioners Present:
Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair

Ryan Sheltra

Kevin Bagger for Rossi Ralenkotter
Bob Maorse

Jennifer Cunningham

Don Newman

Herb Santos, Jr.

John Wagnon

Mike Vaswani

Dallas Haun

Julia Arger

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Richard Arnold
Bob Stoldal

Staff present:

Claudia Vecchio, Director

Larry Friedman, Deputy Director
Sarah Bradley, DAG

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

HUTCHISON: Good morning everyone and welcome to the Nevada Commission on Tourism. This
is the time and place set for the meeting of the Nevada Commission on Tourism.
We'd like to invite Claudia Vecchio to call the roll and confirm that we have a
quorum present.



Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

VECCHIO: Good morning everyone. | will call the roll. This is Claudia Vecchio. First on the
docket, Lieutenant Governor Hutchison?

HUTCHISON: Here.

VECCHIO: Bob Morse, | see down in Las Vegas, welcome.
MORSE: Thank you very much.

VECCHIO: Jennifer Cunningham?

CUNNINGHAM: Here.

VECCHIO: Cindy, | heard you on the phone.

CARANO: Yes, present.

VECCHIO: Thank you. Dallas Haun?

HAUN: Present.

VECCHIO: Oh, excellent. Thank you. Don Newman?

NEWMAN: On the phone.

VECCHIO: Rossi Ralenkotter | believe is not with us today, is there anyone representing him

from the LVCVA?

SEGURA: Yes, this is Valarie Segura, LVCVA,

VECCHIO: Perfect, hi Valarie. Herb Santos?

SANTOS: Present.

VECCHIO: Ryan Sheltra?

SHELTRA: Present.

VECCHIO: Mike Vaswani? He’s not with us at the moment. John Wagnon?

WAGNON: Here.

VECCHIO: All right. Lieutenant Governor, everyone is accounted for. Julie Arger, sorry, you

are here, | see you right in front of me.

ARGER: I'm present.
VECCHIO: Richard Arnold, | don’t believe is with us. Bob Stodal, | don’t believe he is as well.
VASWANI: Mike Vaswani.



VECCHIO:
HUTCHISON:
VECCHIO:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

MORSE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Departrment of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Oh Mike, excellent, thank you.
Great, thank you very much Ms. Vecchio.

We have a quorum.

Great. Then we will proceed to Item No. 2 on our Agenda, Public Comments. Is
there anyone here in Carson City who would like to offer public comments before
the Commission this morning? | don't see any takers. Anyone Mr. Morse, in Las
Vegas?

No one here.

Approval of Minutes

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

VASWANI:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

Okay. We'll go ahead and close out Agenda Item No. 2 then and move on to
Agenda Item 3, which is Approval of the Minutes. We have two sets of minutes.
The first is the approval of the MNovember 16, 2015 Commission Minutes.
Commissioners, have you had an opportunity to review those minutes and are
there any corrections or changes?

Let’s start with the November 16™ one, anything on November 16™? If not, the
Chair will accept a motion to approve the minutes for November 16, 2015
Commission Meeting.

So moved.
We have a motion, do we have a second?
Second

Whoever is recording this can choose who the second was on that. Is there any
discussion on the motion? All those in favor signify by saying aye.

Aye
Any opposed? No. Motion passes unanimously.

Now, we’ll move on to the approval of the minutes, December 9, 2015.
Commissioner Santos, please.

Thank you. | just had one correction on Page 16, where I'm talking. It's the fourth
line down. 1t says, for example, there’s a St. Mary’s and it says, I'm from Virginia
City. I’'m not from Virginia City, | think | probably said, it’s in Virginia City, so if we
could change that, that would be great.



HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

CUNNINGHAM:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, great. Have we got that, Claudia, do you see where that's at? Any further
changes to the minutes reflected from our December 9, 2015 Commission Meeting,
that any of the Commissioners would like to bring to our attention or to clarify? All
right, I'm hearing none. The Chair will accept a motion then to accept and to
approve the December 9, 2015 Commission Meeting Minutes. [As corrected]

So moved.
We've got a motion from Commissioner Sheltra. Have we got a second?
Second.

Commissicner Cunningham, we've got a second. Any discussion on the motion?
Those in favor, please signify by saying aye.

Aye

Any oppose? No. Motion passes unanimously.

DTCA Agency Highlight

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

Thank you, we will move on to Agenda ltem No. 4, DTCA Agency Highlights. Ms.
Vecchio.

Thank you. As you all know, a while ago we included the Chairs of the Boards and
Commissions of the other Agencies in the Department of Tourism and Cultural
Affairs. The purpose was to give those agencies a voice in what we were doing and
the ability to collaborate on ideas and insights on how we, as a tourism industry,
can benefit in a great way from the insight and the assets of these different
agencies.

In the last year and a half, maybe two years, we haven’t really given them the voice
| think that they so richly deserve. For the next three commission meetings, we'll
hear from them and have a discussion about what we can do to help bring them
along with tourism. | know they have some terrific ideas about how they can
impact tourism as well.

The first up is the Nevada Arts Council. Commissioner Arger was kind enough to
say last time, you know, I'm tired of being at the end and | want to have a voice
here. We heard you loud and clear and so we are going to turn it over, to Susan
Boskoff, who is the Administrator of Nevada Arts Council. In conjunction with
Commission Arger, they will give us an overview of the extraordinary work done by
the Nevada Arts Council.

Wonderful. Thank you for being here Susan.



BOSKOFF:

Nevada Cormmmission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good morning Mr. Chair and Members of the Commission. I'm Susan Boskoff.
That’s spelled BOSKOFF. I'm the Administrator of the Nevada Arts Council. I'm
honored to be in this position for 22 }; years. Prior to moving to Nevada for that
job, | was at the Utah Arts Council for 13 years and then for two years, | helped
develop a strategy to raise money for a capital campaign for what is now, the Rose
Wagner Performance Arts Center in downtown Salt Lake.

I will just say | was really was hoping to be mare artistic. | thought | would be
making films and television. Before that, | thought | would be dancing. That didn’t
work out. | went to the dark side and | did work, not in PBS, but in the other side of
television in Wisconsin. A station called WKOW, Cow. | found out that | was a
better administrator, perhaps, than a working artist, so I've been really honored to
be in this position working in this wonderful state with wonderful colleagues. We
call them our constituents, our clients, our grantees, our partners around the State.

| thought the best way to introduce the Nevada Arts Council, rather than listening
to me talk would be with a video. First of all, | wanted to say, thank you for
allowing us to make this presentation. | know Julia does a fantastic job
representing us, but | think pictures and words tell the story, certainly a lot better.

This was an adaptation of a video that Claudia asked us to produce to introduce us
at the first Governor’s Conference on Tourism, years ago down in Las Vegas, to
introduce the new divisions to our new department, to other folks in the tourism
industry. It's about a 4 1/2 minute video.

[video plays] [applause]

Thank you. Much better than listening to me, | think. I’d like to introduce the voice
of our video. Joe Pazlov. He's the voice that answers the phone. You may know
his father who passed away about two years ago, he was the Superintendent of
Schools and a wonderful man. Joe, just by the way is a stand-up comedian, an
actor and you can see him almost weekly at the Nugget. He's pretty funny. So,
thanks.

! think that trying to learn about a new division or agency—| remember one of the
first times at the Legislature, | think it was during Interim Finance Committee. Our
Department was after the Agency, Weights and Measurements. | had not even
known there was such a State Agency that ensured that we got a gallon of gasoline
when we paid for a gallon of gasoline and we got three-quarters of a pound of
pears at Safeway. | was even more impressed about the depth and the breadth of
the services that our State provides citizens and realized | thought | knew quite a
bit, after working in state government for as long as | did, but | didn't.



Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| don’t want to overwhelm you with facts and figures about the State’s Art Council,
but know that we're here to help you explore our programs and services at any
time.

| wanted to let you know that every state and territory in the United States has a
States Arts Agency. The Nevada Arts Council was created in 1967, a few years after
the National Endowment for the Arts was founded in Washington DC.

We create an annual report every year. We've been printing in-house. This is not
the actual color of this beautiful painting by Ron Artow, which is downtown Eureka,
but in here, we try and give a snapshot of the different program areas; we call them
portals for the public. If someone hears about the Arts Council and they're an
educator, they know we have an art’s learning project. If they're an artist, they can
call Artist Services; we might direct them someplace else so they get the service
they need. We're very high touch, medium tech, | would say. We have staff
traveling around the State. They’re really invested in the communities and as we
said, they're our friends.

We have the Folklife Program, the Grants program and we do special projects. This
year in particular, the Legislature was filled with a number of different artist
workshops and exhibitions and music.

We also have on Page 9, our statistics that we are required to gather by the
National Endowment for the Arts, about who attends our events. Whether we
fund them through a grant or we sponsor them through one of the outreach
programs that we design. | call them package programs, like our Traveling
Exhibition Program or residency programs that we deliver to communities that may
not have the cultural resources and assets that others have. Someone might say,
well why doesn’t so and so get a grant? Well, in Battle Mountain right now, they
don’t have an Arts Council, so we take out Traveling Exhibitions or we might take
out Residencies to serve their students.

Actually what we do, to make it very clear, for those who fund us, we have a set of
grants that we post. You can see by City and County and by individual organization,
who is receiving what type of grant. We also use this when we work with people
around the State to encourage them to see who is receiving funding through our
grants process. Perhaps, they might want to apply as well.

Then we do what we call services, which are really all of our outreach activities,
workshops, trainings, documentation, site visits, our “Poetry OQut Loud” program.
State Finals are coming up, Saturday, we’re filming in the studios with Channel 5.
This is the program for the 10™ year that we did. We have more than 2,700
students participating this year. The state champion goes to Washington, DC to
compete for $50,000 in scholarships. Similar to spelling bee but it's memarization

6



HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

CUNNINGHAM:

BOSKOFF:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

and recitation of poetry. Claudia has been part of it as one of our judges for several
years.

That's our annual report. If you have any questions about that. | also wanted to
include one of our most recent publications. This is our Artists in Schools and
Communities Roster. These are artists that go through an adjudication process and
they're approved to do residencies that could have long-term aspects, workshops,
teacher training. They're in a school or in a community for a period of time. It can
be 20 hours. It used to be for a month long residency to work in a community.
Churchill Arts Council and Churchill Schoo! District was very famous for running
very intense month long residencies. They are approved to go either into a school
or community or both. If they go to a school they have to know the fine arts
standards that Nevada School Districts adhere to. We have a number of ways that
schools and organizations can access this funding.

That's just really a quick overview of what we do. It's been just an honor to be
working here as long as | have and to be with this Department with such amazing
colleagues and sister divisions. If you don’t have questions, I'd like to turn this over
to Julia, because | think she wants to share some information as a board member.

Susan, thank you first, for the presentation and for the information and for
educating and updating us on what’s going on with the Arts Council. Great video.
loe, thank you for being here. Thank you for your support of the Arts Council and
for all that you're doing for the State of Nevada. | appreciate you taking the time to
be here,

Before we turn it over to Commissioner Arger, do we have any questions first
among the members of the Commission and Commissioner Cunningham, why don’t
you go ahead and start off for us? Commissioner Sheltra, do you have a few
questions as well?

I do.
Okay.
I'm curious what your biggest challenge is these days.

That's a good question. | think our biggest challenge right now is responding to a
steady increase in requests for not just funding, but for programs, projects,
technical assistance and site visits in smalf communities and neighborhoods around
the state. As we’re coming out of this recession, it's not that the Arts and Culture
weren’t visible, weren’t present during the last eight years, but | think now our
organizations are trying to retool. They find themselves in 2016, looking for help,
looking for innovations, looking for new partnerships, looking at ways in which they



CUNNINGHAM:

BOSKOFF:

HUTCHISON:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

can strengthen their communities and their schools and move forward with vigor in
providing citizens and tourists alike, very exciting programs.

We are a small agency. We have 11 full time employees. Two are in a Las Vegas
office, our Learning Coordinator and our Folk Life Program Associate. Just
responding to an increase in requests is something that we’re challenged with. This
is an agency that does not like to say no. It's very hard for staff to say no we can't
help you.

Would you characterize that then as a financial challenge, a manpower challenge or
a combination of the two?

| think it's a good question. | think that our staff, our people are our greatest
resource. Part of our requirement to receive national endowment funding is to do
a strategic plan every three years. The way we do ours is, we travel around the
state and hold what we call Arts Town Meetings or Community Conversations. This
last year—two years ago almost, we went to 13 communities. Rather than going in
and telling people what we are and what we offer, we have hosts around the state
and we do talk about our services. We do ask about what we could improve. We
turn the conversation back around to that community. What are your dreams?
What are your hopes? What would you say would be a vibrant community? What
are your assets? Which is a really interesting process.

| don't mean to take a lot of time, but | will say that we had an Arts Town Meeting
at the Western Folk Life Center in Elko; it had a large turnout. We had the
President of the College there. We had leaders of the community. We had young
people. We're asking about assets and the staff would say, is having a college in
your town an asset? Yeah, that's really great. Is having an airport in your town an
asset? Ohyeah. Is being on a major highway an asset? Oh yeah.

Then, the big question came from one of our staff members, what do you do for
your young kids that don’t want to play old time fiddle music? What are you
doing? Where are your raves? Where are the kids hanging out? What kind of
activities do you have to really encourage them to expand their horizons?

| think it's having a number of staff time to research what's going on, what's
appropriate for the communities and then to travel around the state. In the
strategic planning process, | would say that funding always comes up, from
organizations, educators and individuals, but it is not the number one request. Itis
resources, assistance and then arts learning is very high.

Any other Commissioners? Commissioner Santos.



SANTOS:

BOSKOFF:

HUTCHISON:

ARGER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you Governor. Herb Santos, for the record. Listening to what you just said,
do you have any type of annual meeting with all the different agencies or museums
to try to come up with or share best practices of what’s working in one community
and sharing ideas so things aren’t always heing reinvented?

When all the budgets were going down in 2009, the Board and staff made some
serious decisions. We kept our core programs but we had suspended our annual
conference called Oasis. We have not been able to restart that. However, we do
have small convenings and warkshops with specific groups.

We have a smaller group called “Arts at the Heart” that brings in teams from
communities around the state. Local arts agencies, municipalities, we ask them to
bring in another representative that could be from their education field, it could be
business, to look at new ways and new best practices. Best practices are always
changing, | think. We are having another “Arts at the Heart” in June. Then we
bring in speakers.

We also present workshops throughout the State. A number occurred down in Las
Vegas. That is obviously a very huge metropolitan area to serve. One of their
biggest challenges is communication. We're working on establishing a monthly
meeting for those people who work in the arts industry to come together.

| will say in Reno, we're very lucky. We've had what's called the “Reno Arts
Consortium.” Jennifer was there a couple of weeks ago. The meeting, every third
Thursday, for 20 years. Anyone can come as part of the arts and culture
community to discuss a number of issues. We have a number of speakers. We
have candidates running for office. It started with the Truckee Meadows
Tomorrow’s Quality of Life Indicator Survey and we just decided to continue to
that. There’s also a group like that in Carson City.

We do share information and that would be—we hope to be able to bring back the
statewide conference sooner than later.

Thank you. Any other questions or comments before | move to Commission Arger,
to provide her thoughts and comments about our Arts Council? Any other
Commissioners here in Carson City or on the phone? All right. Commissioner
Arger, please.

Thank you Governor. 1 want to thank all the Commissioners as well for allowing us
this golden opportunity to share who the Nevada Arts Council is and what we do.

I'm going to focus more specifically as Chairman of the Board. The Board is made
up of nine members. Four from Northern Nevada, four from Southern Nevada and
one from the rural areas. Per the agency's Nevada Revised Statutes, we serve as



Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

advocates of the arts, promotion policies and viewpoints to benefit the arts in the
State. We work with organizations to develop recommendations for strategic
plans, mission and goals and cultural policies and priorities for the State. We
approve grant applications and allocations and we serve in an advisory capacity to
the Department and to the Civision.

Unlike non-profit boards, we are not fundraisers. We do not specifically go out to
raise money for the Nevada Arts Council. It's a state agency. One of the major
reasons is that we do not want to compete for the same dollars as our constituents
are going for. We focus more on the advocacy part of being a Board Member. As
Board Members, we learn issues, we stay visible in the community, we promote the
Nevada Arts Council services and by the way, | just so admire Susan Boskoff for her
leadership and her expertise. Not only in the State of Nevada, but throughout the
western states and through the United States. She is very well respected, very,
very knowledgeahle and so dedicated to the arts. | can’t thank you enough Susan.

We waork with our grant recipients by congratulating them. We attend their events.
We engage local artists and organizations. We build relationships with community
leaders and elected officials. We nurture corporate sponsors for the arts. For
example, the “Poetry Out Loud” finals, which will be at KNBP on Saturday, we have
gotten wonderful corporate support through the past 11" years. NV Energy is a
good example of how we work with the corporations and collaborate with
partnerships there.

The Commission has had some recent discussions regarding advocacy and
wondering how the Commissioners can advocate for the arts. | recall there was a
question that Sarah was going to investigate. Can the Commission have lobbyists,
etc.? I've learned a lot about advocacy since my appointment in 2008. | will say
that advocacy really is the number one focus as a Board Member and for our Board
Members.

That being said, we don't do it alone. Members of a National State Arts Action
Network, work on arts policy initiatives that are tailored to the needs of their state
and state arts agencies. As Susan noted, all 50 states have a state arts agency.

We communicate regularly, share best practices and so forth. Not to try and
reinvent the wheel, we've tried to see what other states have been doing and
adopt what is appropriate for us.

The first week in February this year, | was in Washington DC at an advocacy
symposium and benefited from the interaction with other states arts leaders.
Particularly, this one was particularly for the western states. Not only did we meet
together to share ideas, our advocacy goals, etc., but each delegation from the
states had set up meetings ahead of time with our congressional delegation. We

10



Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

were able to meet in person with Senator Reid, Senator Heller, Representative
Amodei and staff people for Congressman Heck and Dina Titus as well. That face-
to-face interaction is an important part of our advocacy efforts because as you
probably know, we get half of our funding from the National Endowment for the
Arts. In fact, 40% of the National Endowment for the Arts’ budget goes back to the
states. We feel that it is very important to be visible on the national level as well to
try to support the dollars that the NEA gets.

In the most recent budget, President Obama has recommended just under $150M
for the National Endowment for the Arts. $149.8M, something like that. The
National Association of State Arts Agencies is advocating an increase to $155M.
That just gives you an idea of what is happening on the national level and brings it
back home here.

In our State, the Nevada Arts Council has partnered with the Nevada Alliance for
Arts Education, which is now called Cultural Alliance Nevada, or CAN, for almost 20
years. The Nevada Arts Advocates were founded in 1977, just 10 years after the
NAC was created and partnered on many projects and initiatives from art
education, conferences and the Governor’'s Arts Awards, to decades of grassroots
arts advocacy work. Again, it's not just the Board that focuses on advocacy. We
have groups around the state that support the advocacy efforts as well.

We develop an advocacy platform and we work with our advocacy groups, striving
for a unified voice with one statewide message. That's part of our efforts for the
off year and certainly the on year for communicating with our Legislatures.

We always thank the Governor and Legisiature for supporting the Agency and the
arts and arts education. We briefly outline our positions and tie them into our
requests. Cognoscente of economic realities, we believe it's our role to address the
Arts Council’s challenges of serving our state and its residents without the
necessary resources. We have programs and focus on helping the rural areas and
smaller communities. We strive to be a great resource and the staff is phenomenal
help not only to local artists that may be working for their city councils, but also
individual artists as well who want to learn how to write a grant. We put on grant
workshaops to give them that background as well.

The Nevada Arts Council and the Board would like to take credit for our arts
advocacy efforts. The success comes from staff and volunteer leaders of our arts
organizations, artists, parents, educators and patrons. So many people in the state
who are right there with us and they're willing to write letters, meet with elected
officials, testify at hearings and do it over and over and over again. All of this is
done at the local, state and naticnal levels. Our advocacy efforts are constant, it's
like breathing in and breathing out.

11



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Again, | really hope this gives you a little idea of who the Nevada Arts Council is.
We do have our grantees put our logo on their concert and event programs and
their websites, etc. One of our goals is to do exactly what we're doing today and
that is teach, learn, expose the Nevada Arts Council to everyone in the state. Thank
you.

Well, Commissioner Arger, thank you very much for not only the overview and the
education. I'm glad we had this on our agenda and we can really understand the
Arts Council more than we did before this meeting. Thank you and the Board, for
your tireless efforts. Susan, thank you for your efforts. The dancing and
performing arts world’s loss was Nevada's gain. [laughter] We're glad that you're
with us and we're glad that you’re advocating and you’re promoting arts within
Nevada. Let us know how we can help. Tourism ties in very nicely with the Arts
Council. That’s exactly where it belongs. Thank you again, for the presentation.
Thank you for your efforts with the arts in Nevada.

Claudia, let's move now if we can to the Agency updates, thank you very much.

Yes, I'd just like to add one note on to the Arts Council. When we were talking
about Committees, | think it was in our November meeting. Commissioner Stoldal
mentioned having a Cultural Tourism, kind of a subgroup. That's something | think
makes a lot of sense because even as a staff of 25, with the Division of Tourism, we
really don’t have the resources to dedicate somehody to cultural tourism. It would
be a wonderful asset for us to have people who are passionate about this to help
develop cultural tourism. We could use a better, more vibrant component of our
website. There are travelers who love to travel by trails. Creating a cultural
corridor trail system throughout the State that helps travelers find these cultural
gems, | think would be really valuable for us from the tourism standpoint. This is
great foundational information for the Arts Council but it's reliant on me and
reliant on this group to determine how we make this a greater benefit for the State
through a tourism effort. We’ll figure that out. If we have a subcommittee or
other type of cultura!l tourism entity that helps guide those efforts, that would be
tremendous.

Moving on to the other Agency highlights. We don’t have representatives with us
today but we do have reports from the Division of Museums and History that will
be in your packets. Do they have it? Do you have a copy? | have “The Heritage
Lives Here” which is the report from the Division of Museums and History and then
the Nevada Indian Commission is not with us today so we will look for a report
from them.

Just as we did with the Arts Council today, we'll have a presentation from each of
these other agencies in upcoming meetings so we can learn a little bit more about

12



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

them and learn how we integrate them in a greater way within the tourism
environment.

Great, does that conclude Agenda ltem 4 then?

That concludes Agenda Item No. 4.

FY 2016 Projects Related to Tourism Grants

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

FRILOT:

Fine, then we will move on to Agenda Item No. 5, Fiscal Year 2016 Projects Related
to Tourism Grants. | believe we've all gotten a packet on that. Ms. Vecchio?

I will turn the time over to our Grants Administrator, Kari Frilot.
Kari, go right ahead, please.

Good morning Governor, Commissioners. Kari Frilot, for the record. | come before
you this morning to request approval to award funds associated with our Projects
Relating to Tourism Grant Program.

This program currently receives $200,000 every biennium and supports projects
that enhance or improve infrastructure associated with a visitor's experience. For
example, way finding signage, interpretative signage, gateway signage, etc. In
addition to the 5200,000 that we have this biennium, we also have an additional
$38,000 that was collected from our specialized license plate program. Altogether,
we have 5238,000 to award this biennium.

In this grant cycle, we received 31 applications from 29 organizations requesting
more than $511,000. The recommendations before you are a result of a review
process which involves an initial recommendation and review by staff, then we take
that to a committee that is comprised of three rural representatives. In this case
we had Commissioner Don Newman from Elko. We had Andy Chapman who is the
Executive Director of Lake Tahoe, Incline Village, Crystal Bay Visitor's Center. We
had Kim Peterson who is the Executive Director at the Winnemucca Convention
and Visitors Authority. And we had Paula Tomera, who is the Executive Director
from Lander County Tourism Authority. In addition to that, we had Christian
Passink and me on this Cammittee,

We met in Winnemucca on February 25™, reviewed each of these projects in depth
and then as a group, unanimously voted to approve these recommendations that |
bring before you today. | do want you to know that for those projects that we're
recommending less than what they're requesting, | did contact all of them to see if
the project could go forward with a portion of it and they could.

13



HUTCHISON:

FRILOT:

HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

BRADLEY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

With that, | respectfully request your approval to approve the $238,000 for these
projects today.

Thank you very much. Ms, Frilot, let me just remind fellow Commissioners here,
the purpose of the program is outlined in our Agenda under Item 5. The program is
designed to develop publicly owned property, facilities and infrastructure within
Nevada to support and attract visitors to the state.

With the process that you’ve gone through and described for us, Ms. Frilot, my first
question, do you believe that all the recommendations here meet the purpose for
the grant funding?

Kari Frilot for the record. Yes, | do Governaor.

Thank you very much. Fellow Commissioners, you've had a chance to take a look
now at the comments, take a look at the recommendations and please, any
questions for Ms. Frilot before we take up the question of approving this
recommended grant distribution?

Governor.
Commissioner Sheltra, please.

Ryan Sheltra, for the record. Kari, great job. You know, every time you guys go
through these, | don’t think we've ever, | don't think in all the years I've been on
the Commission seen any issues. | think you've really improved, even upon
Christian because these were well vetted. Even the ones that were declined, the
logic was there and | agree with all those moves.

| saw a lot more infrastructure this year. Some years, looking at these cycles we
see a lot of websites and a lot more cutbound marketing. This seemed to be a iot
of infrastructure. Whether it be gazebos or fixing roofs or courts on sports courts,
it seemed to be based a lot on facilities. Which certainly is no issue at all, it's part
of tourism,

My question really is for Sarah. | just want to make sure that we're staying legal on
one of the items that’s recommended for approval here. I'm completely behind it,
but on Page 6, there's an entity that we’re approving quite a bit of money for, for
1,000 seat bleachers. If I'm reading it correctly, it looks like it is County owned land
that is being leased to a for profit operator. Can we award a grant that's going to
benefit a for profit entity and Kari, if | misspoke on any of that, please correct me.

I'm going to have to look at your statutes about the grants. Give me a second.

14



SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

FRILOT:

SANTOS:

FRILOT:

SANTOS:

FRILOT:

NEWMAN:

SHELTRA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 18, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Kari, as | ask that question, | fully support giving them the money if we can, | just
want to make sure that we don’t cross into an area that we shouldn’t.

That’s a good point. Why don’t we just give some time to Sarah to look at that.
We'll just ask, are there any follow-up. Commissioner Santos, please.

Thank you, Herb Santos, for the record. You answered one of the questions, when |
was going through this about whether or not some of these grants, if they don’t get
all their funding, whether or not they can still go forward with their proposed
project. My question is, when an organization would be unable to go forward with
their project, does the amount that was going to be awarded go back into the lot
and redistributed to other programs, where would that money go and at what part
of the process is that determination made?

Kari Frilot, for the record. Thank you, that's a great question. Actually, rarely do
we have that occur, but if it should, we would go back and look at the other
projects that did not get fully funded and reallocate the money to one or more of
those projects.

Herb Santos for the record. So, all the money gets used and nothing just sits or
goes to some other account or anything like that?

That is correct.
All right, thank you very much.
You're welcome.

Commissioner Sheltra, this is Don Newman, regarding your concerns and your
guestions. During the vetting process, this item was discussed quite a bit in that,
was it enough money that we were able to award them based on the fact that the
project budget is quite a bit and they were asking for almost double what we’re
able to award. The fact that it's a public/private partnership, that the fair grounds
are owned by Mineral County, we looked at the infrastructure as an upgrade to the
County owned facility and the partnership is the tourism aspect. The private
partner is bringing races that bring many people to the rural areas. We looked at
the public/private aspect of it as a partnership with Mineral County doing the
infrastructure upgrades and then utilizing the building, whether it's a concert,
whether it’s races, whatever it may be and that was something that we discussed.

Commissioner Newman, thanks for that explanation. | think it's an awesome
project. Just another point of clarification, buying Sarah some time here. Is the
facility not wholly operated by Scott Moderson, does he just come in for select
events and the County runs it for the rest of the year?

15



NEWMAN:

BRADLEY:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| would defer to Christian or Kari on that. That is how | believe it to be, correct.

If you want me to read the statute. NRS 231.360 talks about the grant program and
it says the Commission may provide—this is #1, the Commission may provide
grants of money to counties, cities and local and regional organizations in this state
for the development of projects relating to tourism. | don’t see that it's required
that it's a non-profit. It's just for counties, cities and local and regional
organizations. Then there are some more things in here about the program and it
does talk about the fact that the Commission shall establish the criteria for
eligibility to receive money from the grant program.

| don’t know what your criteria that you've established is. It’s not in the statute,
that part. Obviously it's something you could, | think, make a rule about, but if you
haven’t made that rule yet, it would be the criteria you've already established.

Thank you for that Sarah. | think the guestion was, if there’s a non-profit that we
are directing money to, is that within the statutory framework, but that may now
be a moot question given what Commissioner Newman has just said.
Commissioner Newman, just so we're clear on this and for the record, can you just
recite what your understanding is about the operator who is coming into a county
facility and is not actually running the event year round but is just running a
particular event for a specified length of time? That it really is then a County
facility that would be within the purview of these grants. Why don't you just give
us your thoughts about that again please.

Just as you spoke, Governor. It's, again, the Mineral County Ecanomic
Development Authority is asking, they have submitted the request for the grant.
The race track is owned by the County. This is infrastructure upgrades to a County
facility that has partnered with an operator who has a program which is stock car
racing, to come in. Whether it be camel races or concerts—you know, in Elko, the
Elko County Fairgrounds, everybody needs additional seating, more bleachers and
again, this is the County looking to do the infrastructure upgrade who has a partner
who is willing to promote racing in the area. Again, my view is that this is a County
facility that has a private partner willing to do events in that area.

Thank you Commissioner Newman. Commissioner Sheltra, any kind of follow-up
on that?

Not at all. Thank you Commissioner Newman for the explanation. All good and if
there’s no more—sorry, | didn't mean to say that.

No, go ahead.

16



SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

SHELTRA:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

If there are no more questions, | would love to make a motion to approve the rural
grants for this cycle.

Great, let's see if there’s any other questions among Commissioners here in Carson
City. Any questions among Commissioners on the telephone? Or, in Las Vegas?
I'm seeing none, so we have a motion by Commissioner Sheltra. Actually, did you
make your motion or you said you want to make your motion?

I move to make a motion to approve the FY 2016 Projects Related to Tourism Grant
Program for this cycle.

Thank you very much, Commissioner Sheltra for your motion. Is there a second?
Second.

Commissioner Santos, I'll give you that second. A little quicker on the draw there,
Commissioner Wagnon. Any discussion on the motion? All those in favor signify by
saying aye.

Aye

Any oppose, no? The motion passes unanimously. Congratulations. Thank you
very much. The full recommendation contained within the Committee’s
recommendation to the Commission has been approved.

Reports and Discussion

HUTCHISON:

All right, let’s now move from Agenda Item 5 to Agenda Item 6 which is our longest
agenda Item with numerous reports and updates. Just keeping in mind that brevity
is usually the best policy.

We'll start with Item No. 6, with Chair's Report and V'l probably breach that
admonition to begin with. Let me just give you a couple of updates here and things
that | want to talk about,

First, | had a great opportunity to travel to India and to be in New Delhi with my
friend Larry Freidman. | now know what it's like to travel internationally with
Michael Jackson. | will tell you that he is an international travel and tourism rock
star. People fainting and swooning and gaga-ing everywhere we went. Truly, Larry
it was my honor to be there with you. We had a lot of fun and highly, highly
effective trip and opportunities for us. | told Claudia, you know, that Larry is a state
treasure for us. | mean that. He’s a fine man and he is an asset that we simply
could not accomplish what we accomplish internationally and domestically without
his efforts. | wanted to publicly thank you, Larry, it's my first time of really being
exposed to an International travel and tourism rock star and it was a lot of fun.

17



FREIDMAN:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We set up our offices there, through an agency that was a fantastic agency. Well
vetted. Well connected. We had numerous media events. We met with probably
12 or 15 media outlets, Larry?

28.

28 media outlets. | wasn't exposed to all them. Larry was consumed with all of
them. He really facilitated those efforts. We had television there, we had print
media there. We had all kinds of coverage there. We met with the Ambassador to
India. We went to a travel and tourism conference there, SATTE in New Delhi and
had a lot of exposure. India really is the next frontier for us. | know that members
of this Commission have been on long enough to know that we've done a lot of
outreach to different parts of the world. Of course, the trend setting, new frontier
and the pioneering efforts of our prior Commission members and certainly
Lieutenant Governor, Lorraine Hunt-Bono, who was just fantastic in opening China.
Ever since then, we've had beach heads across the world. We’re in Europe, we're
in North America and now we’re in India. 1.3 billion people. 450 million people in
the middle class. That is more than the population of the United States of America.
50 million of them hold passports and their number one place they want to come is
the United States of America. When they think about entertainment and they
think about enjoying the fruits of the United States of America’s entertainment and
hospitality world, they think of Las Vegas and Reno and Sparks and Nevada.

Our job was then to say, yeah come in, because Las Vegas and Reno are the
international brand. Come in to those gateways and then spend two or three or
four days or another week in Nevada, traveling throughout rural Nevada.
Experiencing all that we have to offer in cowboy country and wine country and
poetry country and Lake Tahoe and all of the things that we have to offer. There
was a lot of receptive people there and it was just a great experience. Time and
energy well spent.

1 will tell you this though. | did not realize how tough it is and what a sacrifice it is
to travel internationally. | mean, | tell people, | went to Israel a couple of years ago
but before that, the extent of my international tourism experience was, when | was
a Boy Scout, | went down to San Diego, we crossed the border and went into
Tijuana. Tijuana was the extent of my international travel.

| want you to know that we make sure that the state funds are carefully spent. I'm
sure that the route that was chosen for me was the cheapest route possible to get
from India to Las Vegas, Nevada. | left for a flight at 3:00 AM. I'm not sure who
books the flights for the state, but my flight was at 3:00 AM. 1{ left my hotel at
midnight and landed in Las Vegas 30 hours later. My point in saying that isn’t to
complain, it's to say, that Claudia and Larry and others within the Commission do

18



FREIDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Departrment of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

that all the time. They just came back from China. | just say, kudos to both of you
and to our entire staff that does that over and over. It's exhausting work and it
sounds glamorous. It is when you're there, a lot of times, it's fun. The travel is very
difficult and Larry, you do that over and over again. Claudia, you do that over and
over again. | say God bless you for all that you're doing and appreciate it.

Larry, I'm going to give you a chance to respend to the rock star comments.

Well, | would only say the feeling is mutual. !t was excellent having you there. You
were a huge asset. We did a press conference that was attended by the 28 and in
addition to Lieutenant Governor doing a formal presentation, there were a lot of
questions and then all of them wanted either one-on-one, two-on-one or three-on-
one interviews following. The response from them, before we even left the
country, all the daily’s had already done articles about the comments and our
entering the market and what the market means to Nevada and what Nevada has.

Then, we had an exceptional meeting with the Embassy and with US Commercial
Services. We have an event with Brand USA that every destination and every state
should be jealous of. It was just Nevada and Brand USA with our logos next to each
other, plastered everywhere. Our sales video being shown on an outdoor screen
with the colors more vibrant that | have ever seen. It was outdoors at the Imperial
on the lawn. We had over 100 people in attendance. All the top tour operators in
the country and more of the top media members of the MICE, part of the industry
as well. The networking and the conversation that went on that evening, it was
incredible.

In partnering with Brand USA, our costs, in terms of, you mentioned using the
money effectively to entertain and meet with over 100 key decision makers was
only $6,000. It was a great partnership with Brand USA. Visit USA was there as
well. | mention Visit USA because the Chair is Commissioner Vaswani’s cousin. It
actually is a small world and a small connection between Nevada and India.

The other thing that we were able to do with the Lieutenant Governor there, when
SATTE opened and the Ambassador of the United States came to do the ribbon
cutting and meet the US delegation, he asked the Lieutenant Governor to
accompany him and meet all the delegation. By the time they were done, the
Ambassador had offered to the Lieutenant Governor to come on a future trip when
he’s back in the United States and speak about India and being India ready to our
constituents, which we have given his people the date of the Global Tourism
Summit. It is a country where having the Lieutenant Governor was impressive to
show our commitment to the market. | think the Lieutenant Governor learned
more about tourism than he ever thought he would.

19



HUTCHISON:

Mevada Commission an Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| realized when | was talking about MICE and GOA that | probably needed to explain
that | was talking about Meetings, Incentives, Conventions and Exhibitions and not
little rodents, which he picked up on very quickly. It was an exceptional
opportunity. | was beyond proud to be traveling with you, so thank you.

Larry, thank you very much again. | know our marketing people are here. Qur
great marketing team. We showed those marketing materials and the videos.
They were well received. They loved it. The “Don’t Fence Me In” marketing
campaign and the videos and the presentations. It was just fantastic. Great
experience for us, halfway around the world, presenting what we've been working
on here as a Commission very, very effectively. 1 say thanks again to everybody
who made that trip possible and to all those who participated.

Let me just move on then. | just wanted to talk about this a little bit with the Air
Services Task Force that we want to develop and will talk more about at a later
Commission Meeting. As we all know, tourism is dependent so much on airlift and
who comes into various parts of our state that we are forming a Task Force and we
are going to be announcing meetings for that and working on the very subject that
will, | think be essential to increasing our tourism. Particularly I think in Northern
Nevada, the rural areas, that’s our airlift in here, the airlines that are coming here
and bringing falks here. That’s just by way of information.

Finally, just wanted to give a shout out to both Senator Dean Heller and the
Representative Dina Titus, who both were recognized by the US Travel Assaciation
as Distinguished Travel Champions in their annual award. They go beyond what
they’'re expected and they were recognized recently as champions and we wrote
them a little letter to thank them for all their doing for what is in Nevada, the
number one industry. Sometimes we forget about the importance of tourism. 58
million tourists in Nevada last year. 42 million people alone in Las Vegas. Down in
Vegas, 1 in 3 jobs is dependent upon somebody making a decision to travel to that
part of the state. Probably 1in 5 jobs, 1 in 4 or 5 johs, Claudia, you can probably
correct me, is dependent upon somebody making a decision to come to tour
Nevada and to be a part of the hospitality and entertainment that’s here.

As long as I've lived in Nevada, my entire life and probably for the rest of my life,
maybe my children’s life, tourism, hospitality and entertainment will continue to
drive this economy. We spend a lot of time trying to diversify and rightfully so. I'm
on the Board of Economic Development. [Unintelligible] that we would, as a state,
diversify and those are important things that we do. We're doing a great job in
that regard, but our bread and butter, our backbone is tourism and the hospitality,
entertainment. I'm proud of the team that we have the folks that we have and the
resources and the members of this Commission who are devoted to that very
purpose.

20



VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

That is my report. As | said, | kept it very brief and to the point. Now we’ll move on
to Item B, Strategic Plan Update and Quarterly Report. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you for the endorsement of this extraordinary industry, we couldn’t agree
with you more.

I'm not going to go through this because you have a fairly lengthy update regarding
the strategic plan. | always think we can’t be successful without a plan to
accomplish what we need to accomplish and a pretty good roadmap for this team
to follow.

I'm so thankful that we now have Key Performance Indicators (KPls) and strategy to
ladder back to. You have where we are for the quarter against each of these KPIs
for the entire group. | know this is a lengthy report but | hope that it gives you the
insight you need to know that we are on track and places where we still need
additional work. That's the report and of course, we’ll entertain any questions you
have about that. If there are other ways you want to see this reported, I'm happy
to do that as well.

Commissioners, any questions or comments about the Strategic Plan update?
We’re going to get a marketing update. That's a big part of what we’re going to be
doing. That’s not really what we're dealing with right now.

No, this strategic plan is the overarching plan that details the different key
initiatives that we are doing as an Agency. The technical components such as the
marketing updates, the PR updates, those all live under those overarching KPIs.
You'll get those updates here in just a second.

The next item there is the Governor's Global Tourism Summit. Larry mentioned
this briefly. We have planned now to have this October 11" and 12". Pending
some contract negotiations and approval, we've selected to have that at the Grand
Sierra Resort here in Reno. They put in a tremendous bid for this program. I've
provided you with a preliminary draft of the program which looks very much like it
did last year with the buyers and the media coming in pre-conference to a do a fam
and a press trip around the Northern Nevada area. Then we launch into our
program with the general and breakout sessions.

The one thing you’ll see that we’ve added is an international Media Marketplace
that will live in conjunction, at the same time as the Sales Marketplace. This really
is a chance for us to bring in the critical media from around the world and offer our
partners a chance to meet one-on-one with them.

This continues to be a business building opportunity beyond an educational piece. |
think the partners love this component of it, so we will continue to grow that part

21



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

GRISWOLD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

of our Global Tourism Summit. Hopefully we'll have some extraordinary general
session speakers as well as some tremendous breakout sessions and others to
complement those different business development pieces.

Ms. Vecchio, let me just ask Commissioners, if you have any questions, as Ms.
Vecchio is running through the agenda, under Agenda Item No. 6, just go ahead
and chime in to ask a question. Otherwise we’ll just have Ms. Vecchio roll through
the items.

Item D is Research. We participate in and buy this Overview of American Travelers.
It's an interesting insight into how travelers are traveling from the national
perspective. Jennifer Griswold who is our Marketing Research Manager is going to
provide an overview of what that means to Nevada. We can see these big studies
and not really bring them home. She’s going to provide a way for us to bring that
back to Nevada.

Great, welcome. Just identify, again, your name for the record so we all have it
clearly and then please proceed.

For the record, I'm Jennifer Griswold, Research Manager for Travel Nevada. In your
Commissioner packets, you got a report called the State of the American Traveler
and | just wanted to hit some highlights from that.

This report comes from our research partner, Destination Analysts. They have
worked with us on several different things, the most recent being the ad copy study
that we've done and we'll be able to present the results for that in the next
Commission Meeting. They're also going to work on the web usability study for us,
so they're really good partners of ours. They do this report annually for as long as |
can remember.

The sample size for this particular report is nationwide and they do a sample size of
about 2,000 different Americans. This is important to us because it tells us more
about the travel trends that we should expect for 2016 to come.

34% of people plan to increase their spending on leisure travel in 2016. | thought
that was really interesting and | wanted to share that with you. One other thing, in
this particular report that | wanted to share, on the fourth page, there is this pie
chart called the Destination Excitement Index. This one is really interesting
because the blue pieces of the pie show us the excitement levels, things that
people get really excited about when they travel. Beaches are one of those, cities
and metros and towns/villages/rural areas are all in the top three of the most
exciting places to travel. The yellow pieces of the pie, those are how often people
go to those places, on average. For beaches especially, it's less than 25%. People

22



HUTCHISON:

GRISWOLD:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | March 15, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

get really excited about going to the beach, but how often are they actually going,.
That’s really interesting to look at.

Destination Analysts sent me some stats, which | will read. There are some
interesting stats hased on how appealing a place is, a specific metro or location
here in Nevada, versus how likely they are to visit.

Las Vegas was actually #5 on the list, which is great in my personal opinion. For
appealing or extremely appealing, they scored 50.7%. That was one of the top
ones. Likelihood to visit was 35.7%. About one-third of the participants plan to
come to Las Vegas in the next three years.

Lake Tahoe area includes California and Nevada, from the study, is looking at 39.8%
is appealing or extremely appealing to visit. 15% plan to visit in the next three
years. That’s really interesting. | have details also for Reno. It's 31.8% is appealing
or extremely appealing and 11.7% plan to visit in the next three years.

If anyone has any questions, please feel free to stop me.

They also asked a couple of different open-ended questions in the study and they
passed this information on to me. The number one place where you feel the most
excited and you feel alive was Las Vegas. The number one most popular place with
travelers who are like-minded to you, was New York City with millennials and Las
Vegas for boomers.

The number three place most “brag worthy” for millennials, in other words, the
place where you will do a lot of social media and you'll take selfies to show, “I'm
here everybody!” was Las Vegas.

Well then that just underscores the importance of the strategy, which is Las Vegas
is the gateway, Reno/Sparks is the gateway. We've got great Convention and
Visitor Authorities that spend a lot of time and money getting people here and
having that perception. Our job is not only to get them to Vegas and Reno but then
get them out into other areas of the state. That's clearly the strategy that we've
got to continue to pursue. Everybody knows it but this just validates it.

In the Destination Excitement Index, some of the top scores were metro areas with
the least amount of gapping. In other words, how often people get excited about
going to those places and how many trips are actually taken. Metros and large
cities were pretty popular. They had the least amount of gap. Closely followed by
small cities/rural areas. Does anybody have any questions?

Commissioner Cunningham.

23






